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National Taiwan University
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- Vice President & General Manager

Kaohsiung Monomer Company Limited

Part of the Lucite International Group Limited
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- MA & Mphil, Chartered Accountant
Cambridge University
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- Director
Mitsubishi Rayon Company Limited
- Chief Executive Officer

Lucite International Group Limited
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- MBA
Shanghai Jico Tong University, China
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- Deputy General Manager
- Financial Conftroller

Lucite International (China) Chemical Industry Company Limited
- Shanghai Novartis Nutrition Company Limited

- Brilliance Group Company Limited
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West Virginia State Collage, USA
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- DCP Refresh Course

- Audit Committee Program (ACP)
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and the Risk Management (MIR)
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» MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Unprecedented natural disasters were the highlights of the year in 2011,
The compounded disaster of earthquake and tsunami occurred on 11th
March in Japan had not only caused severe casualties and damages in
Japan but also impacted the automobile and fridge industries in Thailand

owing to shortage of spares and parts supply. The flood which swept across

Thailand in the monsoon season had also caused substantial disruptions to
people’slife and significant impacts on the manufacturing industries when it
swamped Bangkok and the outskirt areas at end of the year. Unfortunately,
TPA had not been able to escape and the plant was forced to shut down
with virtually little sales for a month long in November. Luckily, there was
no damage to the TPA asset thanked to the great efforts made by the

Management and the employees to protect the asset from being flooded

and the plant resumed operation shortly afterward.

Despite of the adverse effects of the natural disasters and the uneasiness of global economy in the second half of the
year, the Company had performed reasonably well. Although volume sales of acrylics and non-acrylics were 11.8% and
17.8% less than that achieved in the year before, total revenue achieved in the year at Baht 1,564 millions was similar to
that achieved in the year before with only 1.8% lower. Net profit before finance cost and corporate income tax achieved
at Baht 94 millions was also 33.5% better than the year before as gross margins improved from 9.6% in the previous year to
10.9% in the year owning to the on-going efforts of margin management. Net Profit achieved in the year at Baht 67 millions
was 28.6% also higher than that achieved in the previous year and resulted in an earning per share of Baht 5.50 compared
with that of Baht 4.28 per share achieved in the previous year. Under these circumstances, the Company has decided to

distribute a dividend of Baht 4.50 per share to be paid to the shareholders in May 2012.

Safety, health and environmental have also continued with excellent performance, despite of an incident occurred to in
early part of the year, with a cumulative 11,168,000 working hours (since March 30, 1999) without Classified Injury to the

Employees achieved at end of December 2011.

Now that the Company has completed procurement of the leased land, the strategic options for future growth of the
Company have become much clearer and most appropriate ways forward will be pursued in the coming years to maximize

the contribution to the shareholders.

Look ahead, year 2012 will remain a difficult year as status of global economy is far from clear and many governments are
expected fo continue with measures to vein inflation and hence only moderate economy growth is expected in the year.
Nevertheless, the Company has set another aggressive target for the year and | am confident that the Management
will continue making its best endeavour to maximise the acrylic sheet profit margins and boost sales of non-acrylics to

achieve the target.

Taking this opportunity | would like to express my sincere thanks to the Management and all the employees in striving to
perform under the very difficult conditions and to all the shareholders for their understanding and supports given to the

Management,

(Sei-Jin Liou)

Chairman of the Board of Directors

m ANNUAL REPORT 2011



» COMPANY PROFILE

Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited (TPA) is a leading manufacturer of cast acrylic sheet and extrusion facilities for

ABS, HIPS including various plastic sheets such as PP profile, PS, and PMMA sheet. The combined production capacity

is over 22,000 tons per annum.

The company was registered in 1985 under the management of Mr.Charoon Limchiyawat and family. Capital founded

at Baht 10 millions and had been raised to Baht 121.5 millions in 1994 and had become a public company of

Thailand’s Stock Exchange and registered number: 0107 537 00225 7 Today,the major share holder of the company is

Lucite International Co. Ltd., the world’s major manufacturer of Methyl Methacrylate and Acrylic Sheet.

Our business objective is to expand volume and revenue for both cast and extrusion operations by using efficient

machinery and new products development.

In addition, the company has a strategic plan for realizing productivity improvements year on year to remain competitive

against the Asian casters and sheet manufacturers.

Our head office and factory located at :

Sales office located at :

Registrar :

Auditor :

Legal Advisor :

Shareholding in other Business Entity at and above 10%

- 60 - 61 Moo 9, Phutthamonthon 4 Rd.,
Krathumlom, Sam Phran,
Nakhonpathom 73220, Thailand
Telephone @ (662) 429 2020, 429 2487-8, 889 8720-5
Facsimile @ (662) 429 2541, 888 5951

134/5 Krung Thonburi Road, Klong Tonsai, Klong San,
Bangkok 10600, Thailand

Telephone : (662) 860 8765-70

Facsimile @ (662) 860 9106, 860 8762.

Website . http://www.thaipolyacrylic.com

- Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,
4, 6-7th Floor, Rachadapisek Rd., Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110
Telephone : (662) 229-2800
Facsimile @ (662) 359-1259

- Ernst & Young Office Limited
33" Floor, Lake Rajoda Office Complex,
193/136-137 Rojadapisek Road
Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110
G.P.O. Box 1047, Bangkok 10501, Thailand
Telephone : (662) 264 0777
Facsimile @ (662) 264 0789-90

Website  : http://www.ey.com

BZ Legal Advisor Law Office

86 Chatkaew Village Soi 5 Happy Land Rd.,
Kwaeng Klongjan, Bangkapi, Bangkok 10240
Telephone : (662) 733 1655

Facsimile : (662) 375 1782, 733 1655

- Mr. Niphon  Sritong-in

56/91 Moo7, Bangkruay - Sainoi Rd.,
T.Bangkruay, A.Bangkruay, Nonthaburi 11103
Telephone : (662) 886-3664

-Nil-

THAI POLY ACRYLIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED a



» ORGANIZATION CHART

Board of Directors

Audit Committee
Managing Director [ Internal Auditor

Financial HR/Legal Operations Commercial SHE Manager/

Controller Manager Manager Manager (QMR, OH&SMR)

(TLSMR)
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» BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Sei Jin Liou

Title
Age

Education

Sharesholding in the
company

Work Experience during
last 5 years

1999 - Presen

Chairman
63

- Master of Science (MS) in Agriculture,

National Taiwan University

None

- Vice President & General Manager
Kaohsiung Monomer Company Limited

Part of the Lucite International Group Limited

Mr. Ian Lambert o ‘

Title

Age

Education

Sharesholding in the
company

Work Experience during
last 5 years

2011- Present

2003 - Present

Miss. Chaogi Zhang S S— _‘

Title

Age

Education

Shares holding in the
company

Work Experience during
last 5 years

2004 - Present

1998 - 2004
1993 - 1998

Director

57
- MA & Mphil, Chartered Accountant
Cambridge University

None

- Director
Mitsubishi Rayon Company Limited
- Chief Executive Officer

Lucite International Group Limited

Director

41
- MBA
Shanghai Jico Tong University, China

None

- Deputy General Manager
- Financial Controller

Lucite International (China) Chemical Industry Company Limited
- Shanghai Novartis Nutrition Company Limited

- Brilliance Group Company Limited

THAI POLY ACRYLIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED a



Mr. Jan Dam Pedersen

Title
Age

Education

Shareholding in the

company

Work Experience during last

5 years
August 2010 - Present

2001 - July 2010

Mr. Hans Henrik Melchior

Title

Age

Education
Shareholding in the
company

Work Experience during
last 5 years

2011 - present

October 2010 - present

2001 - 2010
1996 - 2009
1992 - 2008

m ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Director
60
- Diploma
EAC's full time course in Business Administration
- Various high level business courses,

IMD Switzerland

None

- President

South East Asia

Brenntag Ingredients (Thailand) Public Company Limited

(previously name The East Asiatic (Thailand) Public Company Limited)
- Managing Director

Brenntag Ingredients (Thailand) Public Company Limited

(previously name The East Asiatic (Thailand) Public Company Limited)

Director

67
- Bachelor of Science (Marketing)

None

- Executive Director
The East Asiatic 2010 (Thailand) Company Limited
- Director
Asiatic Acrylics Company Limited
- Corporate Advisor
The EAC Thailand Group
Brenntag Ingredients (Thailand) Public Company Limited
(previously named The East Asiatic (Thailand) Public Company Limited )
- Company Secretary
Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited
Asiatic Acrylics Company Limited
- Company Secretary

The EAC Thailand Group



Mr. Suchitr Srivetbodee

Title

Age

Education

Shareholding in the

company

Work Experience during
last 5 years
1993 - Present

Director Training Program

Director

63

- Bachelor’'s Degree in Finance,
West Virginia State Collage, USA.

- Master’s Degree in Business
Administration (MBA)
Piftsourgh State University of Kansas, USA.

32,000 shares

- Managing Director
Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited

- Director Accreditations Program  (DAP)

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Mr. Seri Sakdisawasdi -

Title

Age

Education

Shareholding in the

company

Work Experience during
last 5 years

1997- Present

Director Training Program

Independent Director

Chairman of Audit committee
76

- Bachelor Degree in Accounting
Chulalongkom  University, Bangkok, Thailond

- Certificate of Management Development
Program

University of Califomia, Berkeley

None

- Independent Director
- Chairman of Audit Committee

Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited

- Director Accredition Program (DAP)

- Audit Committee Program (ACP)

- Monitoring the System of Intemall
Control and Risk Management (MIR)

- Monitoring the Infernal Audit Function (MIA)
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

THAI POLY ACRYLIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED a




Title

Age

Education

Professional Qualification

Shareholding in the

company

Work Experience
during 5 years
2007 - Present

2005 - Present

1999 - Present

Director Training Program

m ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Independent Director

Member of Audit Committee
74

- Bachelor Degree in Accounting
Chulalongkorn University, Bangkok, Thailand
- M.A. Degree in Accounting

University of Alabama, USA.
- Certified Public Accountant of Thailand

None

- Independent Director
- Member of Audit Committee
Esso (Thailand) Public Company Limited
- Appointed by the Civil Service Commission css :
Specidalist in the field of Finance and Accounting.
- Independent Director
- Member of Audit Committee
Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company  Limited
- Independent Director
- Chairman of Audit Committee

Capital Nomura Securities Public Company Limited

- Director Certification Program (DCP)

- DCP Refresher Course

- Audit Committee Programm (ACP)

- Monitoring the System of Internal Control
and the Risk Management (MIR)

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)



Mr. Sorasakdi Suchart

Title Independent Director

Member of Audit Committee
Age 75
Education - Bachelor Degree in Commerce

Thammasart University

Bangkok, Thailand

Shareholding in the 5,000 shares

company

Work Experience during

last 5 years
1999 - Present - Independent Director
- Member of Audit Committee
Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited
Director Training Program - Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

- Audit Committee Program (ACP)
- Monitoring the System of Internal Control and the Risk Management (MIR)
- Monitoring the Internal Audit Function (MIA)

Thai Institute of directors Association (IOD)

Miss Patcharee Maneetamwong

Title Company Secretary
Age 37
Education - Bachelor of Laws

Chulalongkorn University
- Master of Laws

Chulalongkorn University

Shareholding in TPA - None

THAI POLY ACRYLIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED a



» MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Suchitr  Srivetbodee Mr. Thanetr  Khumchoedchoochai Miss Somjitr  Bunpiboonmitr
Managing Director Commercial Manager Financial Controller
‘a = .
- 2
- —
Mr. Wiwat  Homlaor Mr. Pongsin - Muangsri Mr. Thanawat  Kulprasertrat
Operations Manager SHE Manager/(QMR, OH&SMR) HR/Legal Manager

Mr. Yotin  Tamrongsaowapark Mr. Phairat  Kumdee

Casting Plant Manager Extrusion Plant Manager

m ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Mrs. Noungrutai  Boonpetch

R & T Manager



Mr. Pongthom - Chuencharoen Mr. Pongsun  Assavasirijinda Mr. Wittaya  Mongkolkachit

Site Engineering Manager Sales & Product Manager Technical Center Manager

Mrs. Janjira  Thumsorn Mrs. Masaya  Rungrueng Miss Ratchanee  Piboonmahachotikul

Export Sales Manager Secretary to Managing Director Internal Auditor
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» SHAREHOLDERS

As of 30/12/2011

The Company has a registered capital of Baht 121,500,000 dividend into 12.150.000 shares ( being 12.150.000

ordinary shares ) with a par value of Baht 10 par sahre. All issued shares are fully paid-up.

Name of shareholders

1l LUCITE INTERNATIONAL UK OVERSEAS HOLDCOT1 LIMITED

2. ASIATIC ACRYLICS COMPANY LIMITED

3. THAILAND SECURITIES DEPOSITORY COMPANY LIMITED FOR DEPOSITORS
4. THE EAST ASIATIC 2010 (THAILAND) COMPANY LIMITED

5. THAILAND SECURITIES DEPOSITORY COMPANY LIMITED FOR DEPOSITORS

No. of % of total
Shares Shares
5,137,436 42.28
4,145,053 34.12
2,107,068 17.34

341,600 2.81

138,600 1.14
11,869,757 97.69

DIVIDEND POLICY Flexible but to be considered and approved by the Meeting of Shareholders from time

to tfime
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» NATURE OF BUSINESS

Business Operation of Each Production Line

The Company is a manufacturer and distributor of various kinds of plastic sheets for use as raw materials, such as acrylic

sheet, ABS sheet, and HIPS sheet, etfc.

1. The Company’s products can be classified according to production process as follows:

1.1 Cast Acrylic Production Line

The Company has altogether 3 cast acrylic production lines, producing and distributing cast acrylic sheet with
total production capacity at 10,000 tons per year. The acrylic sheets produced and distributed by the Company
can be categorized according to their uses as follows:

(o) Acrylic sheet for general use under the trademarks of “Moden Glas” and “Sign Ad”, which are widely
used in making advertisement signboards, company signboards, work pieces, and interior/exterior building
decorations, etc.

(b) There are various grades of sanitary acrylic sheets produced by the Company according to the needs
of customers, whereby such sanitary sheetfs could be further worked to make bath tub or shower base.
These products are produced and distributed worldwide under the trademarks of “Moden Glas” and
“Lucite TS”, etc.

©) Special grade acrylic sheet for specific use, such as, impact modified cast sheet, LMS sheet which
has been designed in such a way that light is directed to the edges and it is used as signboard or light

advertisement signboard which is of thinner shape than general light signboard, etfc.

Acrylic sheet is a thermoformable plastic sheet of plain transparent description but can be produced in many
colours, such as, fransparent, opaque, etc. Its special characteristics are that when heated it will be soffened which
can then be easily bended or worked into many forms, and when it is cooled down, it will be hard and remain in
such form. It is also light, able to withstand impact, can be engraved, painted, or silkscreened in many designs.
This kind of acrylic sheet is widely used to replace many materials, such as, glass, steel, aluminum, and plywood,
etc., and can also be used as raw materials in making equipment for house and office building decorations, various
kinds of sanitary wares, as well as multipurpose uses, such as, roof tile, goods and furniture display cabinet,
advertisement signboard, public telephone booth, etc. The Company can produce actrylic sheet of a thickness from

1.5 - 40 mm., and there are many sizes to choose from according to suitability of usage.

1.2 Extrusion Production Line

The Company is also a manufacturer and distributor of ABS sheet and HIPS sheet, including other types of plastics,
by applying extrusion system, under the frademark of “Moden Plas”, and we also accept the hire of work of plastic

production according to purchase orders of customers both locally and abroad.

ABS sheet is a plastic sheet of thermo plastic type manufactured from polymer pellet of acrylonitrile butadine
styrene (ABS), and has the properties of withstanding impact, chemicals, etc. It can be heated fo further work

out in many forms. It also has shining surface.

HIPS sheet is a plastic sheet of thermo plastic type manufactured from polymer plastic pellet of high impact

polystyrene (HIPS). Its general characteristics are similar to ABS sheet; the only differences are usage properties.

Presently, the Company is able fo produce ABS sheet and HIPS sheet as well as many other value added plastic
sheets, such as, extrusion acrylic sheet of both plain and frost design, PMMA capped ABS sheet and plain PP sheet,
etc. We can also make them of a thickness from 1.5 to 10.0 mm. and of a width of 2.5 metres, using advanced

and sophisticated rolling machine imported from leading machinery makers abroad.
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Marketing and Competitive Industrial Situations

2.1 Marketing Development

Acrylic Sheet

We attach much importance to research and development as if it was a scientific apparatus for development of
our products of both acrylic sheets and other plastic extrusion systems of special properties, such as, energy saving
and environmental friendly. Our products can be used in numerous ways, for example, light advertisement boards
or light signboards, etc. Besides, we also move forward in order to develop new technology for work piece
conversion of large size and of as much as 40.0 mm. thickness, including continuous development of sanitary sheets
or bath sheets which are more easily formed in various shapes which come with anti-bacterial properties, so as to

add value to respond to the needs of our customers of both locally and abroad.

ABS Sheet and HIPS Sheet

We still attach importance to the development and improvement of the quality of said sheets so that it be of the
good standards of production of ABS sheet and HIPS sheet. Most importantly, we aim fo improve the quality of
said sheets to be in line with the standards and expectations of each customer. This is because we produce such
In plastic sheets under orders of each customer, and, likewise, they are quite different from each other, for example,

different raw materials and different standards.

In the past year, we had met with successes in developing a new formula PE sheet and high impact extruded acrylic
sheet, which can be used in many kinds of works, for example, making of parts of car decorations industry, equipment

for refrigerator, efc.

2.2 Industrial Trend and Competitiveness of Cast Acrylic Sheet

The overall picture of the demand of acrylic sheet in 2011 remained stable. And although in the first half of the
past year it showed a higher frend, still, such a trend began to shrink in the 3rd quarter. And with the flood crisis in
the beginning of the 4th quarter which starfed in the northem and northeastem provinces and spread fo Bangkok
and suburbs later in November, it then sent an inevitable impact to the production and distribution system of the

Company, so much so that the distribution of our acrylic sheet and other products had to be suspended for a month or so.

Still, although the Company and other manufacturers within the country had to suffer from the world” s economic
retraction as well as impacts from the flooding in the 4th quarter in the past year, the demands of acrylic sheet and
other plastic products were not much affected, as we were able fo use our production capacity at around 80
percent, and, thus, could maintain the basic profits higher than the estimated figures, as a result of reduced costs

of production due to weakened prices of raw materials which had started to come down in the 3rd quarter.

We expect that the demand of acrylic sheet in the next year will have a good tendency in line with the improving
world’s economy, especially in the Asia and Pacific markets and in the USA and middle east markets. Also, we
anticipate that the domestic market should be improving. Nevertheless, the prices of raw materials, particularly
MMA solution, tfend fo be on the rise next year as a result of expected higher demand of consumption worldwide.
In this respect, we need to maintain the price level so that it be in line with the costs of production, which are
expected to be going up as well, not to mention the selling expenses that already show sign of going up according

to the rising oil and fuel prices.
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Other Extruded Plastic Sheets

More than 90% of total sales of extruded plastic sheets in each year are those of domestic sales. In each year,
the sales appear to expand continuously. However, in the past year the total sales in the part of ABS sheets and
HIPS sheets were lesser than the year before, owing to 2 main causes. First, the loss of major customers in the
refrigerator industrial group which appeared to have expanded their own production of ABS/HIPS sheets for use
in making doors and food liners, and this caused the Company to have lost its market share in this industry. Second,
the flood crisis in Bangkok and suburbs in the 4th quarter of the past year, which readily caused the Company to
have suspended its entire production line and spending most of the time during that period in making preparations
to prevent water from getting into the factory. It is however a pleasure to learn that though the severe flooding in
the Putthamonthon Areas had never happened before, we did not sustain any damages during the one month
period that the water was surrounding our own plant, neither any machinery nor assets of the Company were

damaged.

However, we have now started to prepare a new marketing plan to increase the total sales of ABS/HIPS sheets
as well as other extruded plastic sheets in the part of local automobile industry and packaging industry and others,
so as to support the sales volume in the electrical appliance industry which might be decreasing by marketing

reasons as specified above.

Important Production Policy
The Company has adopted its own important production policy as per the following strategies:

1. Setting targets on increased production, reducing percentage of losses, using suitable raw materials, and

increasing production efficiency, etc.

2. Improving machinery and equipment to reduce losses during production, while also improving the quality of

goods to be of good standards so that it be accepted by the customers both locally and abroad.

3. Preparing cost saving plan fo reduce costs, such as, improvement of production process, production plan, so

as to reduce the costs of production, which would make it more competitive in the markets.

4. The Company still attaches much importance to the upgrading of new product development, especially value-

added special products, by regarding this as its trade policy.

5. The Company gives importance to the development of skills of its staff. And though we are greatly affected
by the world’s economic recession, we still put emphasis on personnel development, by arranging various training
programs, and by promoting more consultation meetings to exchange viewpoints between organisations.  The
objective is to create an atmosphere of production efficiency development via good communications and

brainstorming. as well as participation in problem solving process, all of which will in the end benefit the Company.

6. Developing and upgrading quality of goods and services continuously, by listening to viewpoints, needs, and
complaints, from its customers both locally and abroad, and also setting suitable methods to improve and develop

its products to meet utmost satisfaction of customers.

7. Giving importance to safety, occupational health, and environments among the staff and the communities, by
regarding this as one of the top policies of the Company which state that it is the duty and responsibility of the
Management and all staff to play a part in this aspect, whereby such shall be also used as an evaluation of their

performances.
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» RISK FACTORS / RISK ASSESSMENT

1. Risks in the Manufacturing Process

Risks pertaining to materials sourcing

The main raw material used in the manufacture of acrylic sheets is MMA (Methyl Metha Acrylate).  The Company
imports MMA from overseas and also acquires some volume of it locally for the production throughout the year at the
volumes and market prices to be agreed upon one month in advance prior to shipment. The Company has formulated purchasing
plans with contacted suppliers in advance to ensure binding commitment for MMA supply and also to ensure that
the Company is always adequately and consistently supplied with MMA for the production requirement, and the
prices are to be agreed upon on a monthly basis at fair market prices that can be monitored using reliable sources

and can be mutually agreed on by both parties.

In the manufacture of plastic sheets under the extrusion system, the main raw materials are ABS, HIPS, PP and PE
plastic pellets, most of which can be produced domestically. Some types of the materials are imported from
overseas but only in the case where some specific types are not available locally, or in the case the imported

materials are cheaper.

The principles and the purchasing plans applied in acquiring raw materials both locally and overseas, therefore,
protect the Company against related risks so that the Company adequately has each type of materials as required
by its Sales & Operations Planning, which is reviewed every month and made 3 months in advance. Some risks
are still present as the raw material prices may fluctuate, but the risks are not significant because the Company
has no policy of storing more than 2 months” amount of the estimated materials needed in the production plan.

This practice helps reduce the risks of price fluctuation to an acceptable level.

2. Risks in Operating the Business

Risks pertaining to new competitors

In operating its business, the Company is faced with risks from competition both domestically and overseas. However,
in relation to this, the company has formulated a policy for creating the product differentiation by emphasizing
the quallity of the goods for which a quality warranty can be issued and recognition from overseas; and by competitive
pricing and by emphasizing the development of the valued-added products, e.g., bath sheet, sheet acrylic or
acrylic sheet, edge-lighting acrylic panel and high Impact Modified Acrylic Sheet, etc. This is to enhance the
competition potential and the growth of the business on a long-term basis.

Furthermore, the Company continue to keep good business relationship with key customers and also providing
technical sales assistance not only to the customers but also include customer’s customers in such a manner that
they are acquainted with the product knowledge and are more capable to fabricate the product with a greater
efficiency.

This can be considered one of the Company’s competitive edges, which greatly satisfies customers in each of the

marketing channels.

m ANNUAL REPORT 2011



The risk relating to the management

3.1 The risk of purchasing goods by the large shareholders

Although the Company made reciprocal business transactions with Lucite International and subsidiaries of which
the majority will be purchase transactions of raw materials used in the manufacture of Acrylic sheets and the entering
into a Sale of Acrylic Sheets Agreement with overseas, where Lucite International established an office or sales office
in certain countries such as China, Korea, Australia and New Zealand, etc. The execution of the said transactions
are subject to the management and agreement in which the company shall monitor the market price of the raw
materials regularly and have the price agreed with Lucite International. Once the proposed price is agreed the
company shall apply trade discount and conversion rate into the price calculation. The company also fixes the

selling price and trade discount and commission taking into account the prevailing sheet price sold to each customer.

[tems of related deals between the Company and Lucite International has been examined by the Audit Committee
and the Committee is of the opinion that the price and frading terms mentioned above has entered into based

on the buying-selling price criteria according to fair and reasonable market price.

3.2 Risk arising from the major shareholder holds more than 50% of shares in the company

Lucite International UK Overseas Holding Company Limited Group, Asiatic Acrylics Company Limited and The East
Asiatic 2010 (Thailand) Company Limited as a group of majority shareholders hold 79.21% of the company shares,
thus they are in a position to influence in any subject that legally required majority votes at the Shareholding Meeting.
However, in compliance to the Corporate Good Governance and for business transparency, the Board of Directors have
appointed 3 independent directors who are actively performing as the Company’s Audit Committee and all of
them are well qualified professionals with outstanding qualifications as prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
All other Company’s directors, besides the Independent Directors, are also experts and professionals in various educational
fields who are committed to manage the business for the upmost benefits of the company and to the shareholders. The
executive directors and non-executive directors who are representatives of the Company’s major shareholders are
always participated in the Board meetings when there are major issues raised in the meeting agenda. None of

them have ever received any Director’s fee or any kind of remuneration as the Company’s director.
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» MANAGEMENT

1.

Management Structure

Board of Directors

As of December 31, 2011 the Board of Directors comprises of 9 members whose names are listed below:

)
2)
3)
)
5)
6)
7
8)
)

Mr. Sei Jin Liou Chairman

Mr. lan  Lambert Director

Miss Chaoqji Zhang Director

Mr. Jan Dam Pedersen Director

Mr. Hans Henrik Melchior Director

Mr. Suchitr  Srivetbodee Director

Mr. Seri - Sakdisawasdi Independent Director
Mr. Sorasakdi  Suchart Independent Director

Assistant Professor Wattanee Phanachet  Independent Director

Company Secretary is Miss Patcharee Maneetamwong

Scope of authorities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors assigns authorities to the appointed directors to sign and engage in any legal obligations on behalf

of the company as prescribed by the Public Limited Companies Act and within the scope of the company’s objectives.

The Board of Directors also reserve the right to revoke the authorities given to such persons.

The authorities of these appointed directors are :

)

2)

3)
)

5)

6

7

8)

To file a complaint and proceed with legal action on behalf of the company including to settle a dispute or
assign arbifrator to settle any dispute.

To purchase, procure, lease, lease out, hold ownership or right of possession, modify, utilize, or carry out anything
related to the assets and gains from those assets.

To sell, fransfer, accept pledge, mortgage, exchange, or distribute assets in other way.

To borrow money, guarantee debtors, aval or endorse bills of exchange or other kinds of fransferable financial
instruments.

To bail out directors, officials, or employees of the company charged in criminal court cases as a result of their
performance carrying out the company’s business.

To hold shares and/or manage other public or private limited companies as well as collaborate with those
companies to carry out specified business.

To carry out any duties that can only be performed by natural persons in accordance with the company’s
objectives.

To prepare the company’s financial statements, financial documents, and submit evaluation reports on the

adequacy of the company’s internal control system.

The approved authority to sign legal obligations on behalf ofthe company requires two authorized directors to jointly

sign their names together with the company’s seal affixed.
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Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2011, the Audit Committee comprises 3 members whose names are listed below:

1) Mr. Seri Sakdisawasdi Chairman of Audit Committee
2) Mr. Sorasakdi Suchart Audit Committee
3) Assistant Professor Wattanee Phanachet Audit Committee

Secretary of the Audit Committee is Miss Ratchanee  Piboonmahachotikul

Duties and Responsibilities

The Audit Committee has the duties to perform as prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand as follows:

1) To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.

2) To review the Company’s intemnal control system and internal audit to ensure that they are suitable and efficient.

3) To review the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange's regulations, and
the laws relating to the Company’s business.

4) To consider, select and no minate an independent person o be the Company’s auditor, and to propose such
person’s remuneration.

5) To aftend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year.

6) To review the Connected Transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that
they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are reasonable and for the highest
benefit of the Company.

7)  To determine an internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer and
dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit.

8) To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an Audit Committee’s report which must be signed
by the Audit Committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information :

8.1 an opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report.

8.2 an opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system.

8.3 an opinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations,
or the laws relating to the Company’s business.

8.4 an opinion on the suitability of an auditor.

8.5 an opinion on the fransactions that may lead to conflicts of interests.

8.6 the number of the Audit Committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each commitee

member.

8.7 an opinion or overview comment received by the Audit Committee from its performance of duties in
accordance with the charter.

8.8 other transactions which, according to the Audit Committee’s opinion, should be known to the shareholders
an general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s Board
of Directors.

9 Inits performance of duties, if it is found or suspected that there is a transaction or any of the following acts which
may materially affect the Company’s financial condition and operating results, the Audit committee shall report it
to the Company’s Board of Directors for rectification within the period of time that the Audit Committee thinks fit:
9.1 a transaction which causes a conflict of interest.

9.2 any fraud, irregularity, or material defect in an internal control system.

9.3 an infringement of the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange'’s regulations, or any law relating to
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10)

m

12)

If the Company’s Board of Directors or management fails to make a rectification within the period of time

under the first paragraph, any Audit Committee member may report on the transaction or act under 9.1, 9.2
and 9.3 fo the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Stock of Exchange of Thailand.
If the Auditor discovers any suspicious circumstance that the director, manager or any person responsible for the
operation of such juristic person commits an offence the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 1992 under the second
paragraph of Section 281/2, Section 305, Section 306, Section 308, Section 309, Section 310, Section 311, Section
312 or Section 313, the Auditor shall inform the fact relating to such circumstance to the Audit Committee in order
to continue the inspection without delay and the Audit Committee shall report the result of preliminary inspection
to the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Auditor within thirty days. Suspicious circumstances that shall
be informed under the first paragraph and procedures for acquiring the fact relating to such circumstances shall
comply with the notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
In case that Audit Committee member wishes to resign before the expiration of his term of service, he should give
a notice thereof to the company one month in advance together with reason therefore so that the Company’s
Board of Directors or shareholders’ meeting can consider appointing another director who is fully qualified to
replace the resigning member.
To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors, with the approval of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible to the Company’s Board of Directors according to the duties and

responsibilities  assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors, while the responsibilities for all activities of the company

tfowards  shareholders, stakeholder and other persons are still vested in the entire the Company’s Board of Directors.

Managing Director

Mr.Suchitr  Srivetbodee is the company’ s managing director whose scope of authorities is as follows:

Scope of authorities of the Managing Director

D

2)

3)
)

5)

To consider the appointment, transfer, dismissal, discharge, and approval of resignations of the company’s
employees at every level.

To consider remunerations including salary, bonus, and other benefits as well as annual remuneration
adjustments of the company’s employees at every level.

To approve the determination and changes in conditions on trade as assigned by the Board of Directors.

To consider and approve the purchasing of fixed assets within the signing authority as assigned by the Board

of Directors.

To consider and carry out any operation related to general management of the company except the acquisition
and sale of the company’s assets and other connected transactions that must be operated in accordance with

the notification of the Securities Exchange of Thailand and other related laws.
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As of December 31, 2011 the Company’s Management Team compirises 15 persons whose names are listed below

1) Mr. Suchitr Srivetbodee Managing Director

2) Mr. Thanetr Khumchoedchoochai Commercial Manager

3) Mr. Wiwat Hom la-or Operations Manager

4) Mr. Thanawat Kulprasertrat Human Resource/Legal Manager (TLSMR)
5) Miss Somjitr Bunpiboonmitr Financial Controller

6) Mr. Pongsin Muangsri SHE Manager & QMR/OH & SMR
7) Mr. Yotin  Tamrongsaowapark Casting Plant Manager

8) Mr. Phairat Kumdee Extrusion Plant Manager

9) Mr. Pongthormn Chuencharoen Site Engineering Manager

10) Mrs. Noungrutai  Boonpetch Research & Technical Manager
11) Mr. Wittaya Mongkolkachit Technical Center Manager

12) Mr. Pongsun Asavasirijinda Sales & Product Manager

13) Mrs. Janjira Thumsomn Export Sales Manager

14) Miss Ratchanee Piboonmahachotikul  Internal Auditor

15) Mrs. Masaya  Rungrueng Secretary to Managing Director

2. Directors and Management Selection

The selection and election of the directors shall be proceeded through the shareholder meeting as following:-

¢ The Board of Directors identifies candidates for director positions based on appropriate skills and characteristics.  After
reviewing their work experiences, the Board proposes them to the Board Meeting for selection and approval from the
Meeting.

¢ To nominate the selected Directors to be appointed by the shareholders at the general meeting of shareholders.
Each director must obtain the votes of more than a half of the fotal vote of the shareholder who has the right to

vote and atftends the meeting.

The general meeting of shareholders shall elect and appoint the company’s directors. The criteria and procedure for the
appointment of directors are as follows :

1) One shareholder’s share is good for one vote.

2) In the election of directors, the method of voting is to elect individual directors one person at a time or
collectively, several persons at a time, or any other method as the meeting of shareholders may see fit; but in passing
each resolution, it must be voted on with all the votes entitlements under 1. The votes may not be divided between
persons or groups to any extent.

3) The election of directors shall be decided by a majority of votes. In case of tied votes, the chairman of

the meeting shall be entitled to a casting vote.

In accordance with clauses 22 and 50 of the company’s articles of association, one-third of the directors shall retire
from the office at every annual general meeting of the shareholders. The retiring directors shall be those who have been
longest in the office on the rotation basis. The chairman of the meeting shall request for the election of new directors

until the vacant positions are filled.

Management selection is responsibility of the Managing Director as described in the Scope of authorities of the Managing

Director.
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3. Remuneration for the Board and Management

Financial Remuneration

Board of Directors

In 2011, the Company paid remuneration to the Audit Committee, consisting of 3 independent Directors totaling
Baht 1,172,560.00, in form of annual Director’s fees of Baht 976,560.00, Audit Committee meeting allowances
totaling 5 times and Board meeting allowances totaling 7 times of Baht 177,000.00 and Annual General Meeting

1 time of Baht 19,000.00

Executives
In 2011, the company paid salary, bonus, and other remunerations to executive directors and executive officers
totaling Baht 26,833,368.75 Moreover, the company also paid contributions of Baht 953,245.50 to the executive’s

provident fund.

Other remunerations

-none-

4. Control of Inside Information

Since 1996 it has been the company’s policy that all the executives and employees shall adhere to the company’s
regulations concerming the ethical code of conduct or business ethics. The company’s executives and employees are
forbidden from using internal information for personal benefits and have to avoid conflicts of interest. The company

always supervises and reports the movement of the company’s shares held by executives and employees.

5. Personnel

As of December 31, 2011 the company’s employees consisted of :

Administration 35 persons
Production 256 persons
Total 291 persons

The remuneration of company’s employees in 2011 including salary, bonus, and other compensation fund. totaled
Baht 82,375,465.25 and also contributions to the provident fund Baht 2,888,884.25

In the last 3 years, there has been no significant change in number of employees and no significant labors disputes.
6. Important Policy on Employees Development

The company shall provide its staff with fraining so that they will recognize their responsibility in product quality improvement

and in serving customers demands to their utmost satisfactions.
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» PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is obliged to perform its duties for the best interests of the shareholders and shall treat its stakeholders and
all parties concerned with utmost fairness and produce quality products and services to fit the needs and requirements

of the customers.

The Board adheres to the principles of good corporate govermnance, ensuring that its business fransactions are properly
conducted with transparency and faimess for the mutual benefits to the Company’s shareholders, stakeholders as well

as the community and society where it operates.

This document is prepared as the Company’s Corporate Governance Policy, in accordance with that mandated by the

Stock Exchange of Thailand in 2006, and is reported in five separate categories, as follows:

1. The Rights of Shareholders

The rights of shareholders include all basic rights as both an investor and an owner of the Company:; for instance, the
rights to buy new shares, sell or fransfer owned shares, the rights to receive dividends, the rights to attend the shareholder
meetings, the rights to express or raise questions at the meetings, the rights to make decision by voting on important
affairs of the Company, e.g. nomination of Directors, amendment of memorandum and articles of association and

regulations of the Company, etc.

Notwithstanding all of the aforementioned fundamental rights, the Company, in 2011, launched the following measures

to support and facilitate the exercise of the shareholders’ rights:

1. In the case where any shareholder is unable to aftend a meeting by himself/herself, the Company allows such
shareholder to assign the Managing Director or any of the Company’s independent directors as proxy to attend
the meeting on his/her behalf by using any of the proxy forms enclosed with the meeting invitation letter.

2. At the meeting, the Company encourages the shareholders to freely comment, suggest or raise any question that
he/she may have on each agenda item prior to the vote for resolution in each agenda item. At the meeting,
sufficient details in each agenda item of the meeting must be provided to all shareholders. Should any shareholder
have any concem or question to any specific agenda item, the Company will assign the board’s directors and
the top executives, whose responsibilities correspond to the concern/question, to give the clarification or the answer.

3. In addition, the Company provides the opportunity for the minority shareholders to nominate candidates to be
elected as Directors and to propose agenda items prior to the general meeting of shareholders in 2011.  The
company has provided the opportunity for the shareholder has used to privilege since 24 December 2010 until
31 January 2011

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Board is aware and shall provide equitable treatment to every individual shareholder and every group of shareholders,

whether they are major or minor shareholders, individual investors or institutions, locally or overseas. Therefore, the Board

shall make every effort in enhancing equality to all value shareholders, in particular the minor shareholders. For instance:

. To fix the rights to vote at the meetings according to the number of shares owned by each individual shareholder,
allowing one share one vote.

. The Board has assigned responsibility to the independent directors to oversee the minority shareholders’ interests
by allowing minority shareholders to contact the independent directors directly for any issues and concerns that
they may have over the Company’s matters. The independent directors shall consider the issues, investigate the
matters and find proper method in dealing with the situation. The independent directors shall present the issues
that they consider important and affecting the shareholders or the business operations to the atftention of the
Board and may propose to set it as an agenda item for a shareholders” meeting in order to report the issues raised

by the minority shareholders and how the matters have been resolved.

THAI POLY ACRYLIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED a



. The Company provides an opportunity to the minority shareholders to suggest or propose agenda items and/or

nominees to be elected as Directors in the shareholders’” meetings to the independent directors via the Company’s
website: www.thaipolyacrylic.com or e-mail: masaya.rungrueng@lucite.com or via mail to the address shown on
the website (Attention: Khun Masaya Rungrueng).

. The Board has established necessary measures to control the use as well as to prevent the misuse of the Company’s
internal information for personal benefits, specifically those within the Company, namely Directors, all executives,
all personnel working in related departments, including their spouses and minor children. For instance, should any
Directors or top executives sell or buy the Company shares, they are required to report the shareholding transactions
to SEC within 3 working days for public disclosure.

e The Board shall convene the Shareholders” Annual General Meeting within 4 months after the end of the fiscal year
and shall provide shareholders with the notice of the meeting and a clearly stated agenda with the Board'’s opinions
on each agenda item. The notice and meeting agenda along with adequate supporting documents shall be
delivered timely to the domestic and foreign shareholders prior to the meeting. Other information related to the
meeting such as the Company’s annual report, proxy forms, as well as details of the procedure to be used in the
meeting should be supplied to the shareholders so that they have sufficient time to study the documents and

information and the meeting procedure prior to the meeting.

At the Shareholders” Meeting, all shareholders have equal rights to express their opinions and suggestions and raise

questions for each agenda item during the meeting.

Besides the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board may call an Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting at any
time it deems necessary. Likewise, shareholders may jointly request such a meeting in writing with sufficient justification,
according to the Company’s Articles of Association on calling such meetings. If warranted, an Extraordinary Shareholders’

Meeting must take place within one month after the written request is received.

The Company recognizes the importance of each shareholder and respects each shareholder’s rights. Therefore, the

Company has implemented the aforementioned policies. The summarized details of the Company’s action are as follows:

. The Company has sent the invitation letter, in which date, time, and place of the meeting are addressed, to each
shareholder 14 days prior to the date of the meeting. In 2011, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders was
held once on 27th April 2011, and record date was established to determine the shareholders who have the rights
to aftend and vote in the meeting.

e Af the annual general meeting, 6 directors (over half of the Board) as well as the auditors and the Company’s
executives attended the meeting. The list of attendees was shown in the minutes of the meeting.

. The Company has prescribed that the vote card be used. Each shareholder was requested to cast his/her vote to
each important agenda item separately in order that each shareholder was able to cast his/her vote to each
agenda item in a free manner. After the voting. the Company counted and disclosed the results of the shareholders
resolution for each specific agenda item.

. The Company, in its Ethical Code of Conduct, has prescribed that the Company’s directors, executives, or
employees must not use the information obtained in their position for their own self-interest or for conducting any
business that is in competition or relation with the Company, as well as must not use the internal information for
personal gains in selling or buying shares of the Company. In 2011, there was no occurrence of any conflict of
interests or use of internal information for personal gains in sale/purchase of the Company’s shares. In addition, the

structure of the Company’s shareholding in 2011 has been clearly provided in the Company’s annual report.
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. The Company has disclosed the details of the nominees for Directors, Independent Directors, and the Company’s
auditors in the invitation letter for the annual general meeting submitted to all shareholders.

o From 2009 onwards, the Company has provided the minority shareholders the opportunity to suggest additional
agenda items to the shareholders” meetings to the Board of Directors via www.thaipolyacrylic.com or masaya.
rungrueng@lucite.com.

o The Company has also provided the opportunity for the minority shareholders to nominate any qualified candidate
for the election to the Board by sending their nomination to www.thaipolyacrylic.com or masaya.rungrueng@lucite.com,

to be considered by the independent directors before submission to the Company’s Board of Directors.

3. The Roles of Stakeholders
The Company conducts its business with responsibility to ensure mutual benefits to all groups of stakeholders so that
the administration and the business operations of the Company shall not have an impact on the rights of stakeholders

concermed, namely shareholders, employees, customers, creditors, competitors, community and society.

e Shareholders: Besides the basic rights stipulated by the laws and the rights according to the Company’s regulations
that have been described earlier in the section of the Rights of Shareholders, the Company allows the shareholders
the rights, as the owners of the Company, to make suggestions or comments on the Company’s affairs directly to
the independent directors. Each comment and suggestion shall be treated as confidential and considered with
prudence before being presented to the Board of Directors.

o Employees: The Company regards all employees as its essential asset and shall continue to develop competence
and inftegrity of the employees. The Company shall provide its employees with good benefits such as medical
treatment scheme and provident fund scheme and shall treat all employees in such a way that they are happy
to perform their tasks, by providing workplace that is safe and with healthy environment. The Company has set an
operational manual as a mechanism for the employees to file their complaints or to report any concerns about

illegal, unethical or unfair practices within the Company.

The Company has been treating all employees in the manner that allows them to work with happiness by promoting

safe working environment as well as providing appropriate welfares, facilities, and entertainments.

. Customers: The Company is dedicated to providing customers with maximum benefits in terms of product and service
quality at a competitive price. The customers shall be provided with all relevant data sheet and product information
and the technical service assistance as well as the complaint handling procedure, to ensure customers” satisfaction.

. Creditors: The Company shall maintain good relationship with the creditors in such a way that they have trust and
confidence. In doing so, the Company shall commit itself to and honor any promises and obligations agreed with
the creditors.

. Competitors: The Company shalll treat its business competitors in accordance with the laws and generally accepted
trade principles. The Company shall operate its business within a fair competitive context and shall not take any
unfair, illegal advantage of its business competitors.

. Community and Society: The Company continues to operate its business that is beneficial to the nation’s economy,
society and the community in which the Company is located, especially by providing support and opportunities
for better education and development for young people in sports, innovations, science, and technology. In addition,
the Company shall co-operate with the community and the government agencies in preventing any action that

may be hazardous to the environment, the community and the society as a whole.
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The important projects implemented for the community and the society in 2011 are as follows:

1. Support the children in the children at the Krathum Lom Municipality

Provide financial support as well as necessity items to people affected by Sunami

Support to the government with a 60,000 baht educational fund for students of the krathum Lom School
Support the Krathum Lom Municipality with bicycle

Donating fund fo Tambon Krathumlom Health Permit Hospital

S

Participating in the * Gaang Moon Hai Nong” Project of the Foundation of King Rama IX THE GREAT, to provide

mosquito nets for those in need

4. Disclosure and Transparency

Apart from disclosure of the Company’s information and financial statements to the public through various channels
under the conditions stipulated by the law on a complete, accurate, sufficient and timely basis, the Company shall
disclose the following information to the public to ensure transparency of the business operations:

. Disclose the performance and attendance records of sub-committees.

. Disclose corporate governance policy and the results of its implementation

In 2007, the Company established in writing the policy of good corporate governance, and disclosed the results
of implementation with the regard to the policy in the annual report for 2011 as well as publicized such results via
www.thaipolyacrylic.com under the headline of Good Corporate Governance.

. Disclose the policy on remuneration for the board’s directors and top executives, including forms, types, and the
amount of the remuneration.

. Allow the general public, including the community and institutions, to raise questions through the Company’s
website www.thaipolyacrylic.com and/or direct contact with the Managing Director or the authorized executives
for the appointment of meeting.

. The Board has a policy of having all of its directors attend every meeting where there are important issues in
the meeting agenda, such as the consideration and approval of future investments and expansion, and the

consideration and approval of the annual operating results and financial statements, etc.

In addition to the aforementioned data, the Company has addressed, in the 2011 Annual Report in both Thai and
English languages, the information as to the name list and the duties of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee,
the remunerations for the directors and the executives as well as the Board of Directors’ responsibilities in making the

financial report.

5. The Board Structure, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and the Sub-Committees

5.1 Structure of the Board
At the present, the company’s Board of Direcdors consists of 9 members, consisting of 3 independent directors, 1 top

executive, and representatives of the major shareholders for the remainder.

5.2 Chairman and Managing Director

With respect o the difference in duties and responsibilities between the Chairman, as the head at the policy level, and
the Managing Director of the Company, as the chief of the management executives who look after all aspects of the
business operations following the policy, the Company deem:s it appropriate to separate the roles and responsibilities of the

two positions and that the two positions shall not be held by the same person in order to ensure the balance of authority.

The Company has not appointed an independent director as Chairman, as advised in the good corporate governance

guidelines of SET, but the independent directors have full independence to express their opinions to the Board.
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5.3 The Sub-Committees
Considering the Company’s Board structure, the Company has appointed all 3 Independent Directors to work as Audit

Committee, which reports directly to the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee shall have the authority and responsibility to oversee, review, and assess the operations of the
Company to ensure conformity with the laws and regulations of the regulating authorities, as well as the Company rules

and regulations and the code of conduct.

The Audit Committee is also responsible to oversee and enhance corporate financial statements and reporting systems
in accordance with the international standards, and shall oversee and review regularly the Company’s intemnal control,

internal audit, and risk management systems in order to ensure that all systems are adequate, updated and efficient.

The Audit Committee shall perform its duties independently. It can assign or supervise the internal auditors to audit all
systems and can present its opinions freely to the Board of Directors. In addition, the Audit Committee can consult with
the Company’s external auditors and management executives regarding matters of the Company, or it may seek advice

from experts in specialized fields as appropriate, such as legal and accounting experts.

The Company is in support of establishing Nomination Committee or Remuneration Committee, as advised by the
SET, but as this task can still be managed by the Board itself, the Company has currently chosen not to establish the

sub-committee.

5.4 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors shall be fully responsible for setting the Company’s vision, mission, corporate policies and objectives,
and shall regularly review the business strategic plans to ensure the Company's growth, efficient performance and
competitiveness in the dynamic global environment. The Board shall also review and assess the performance of the top
management and the overall performance of the Company, and oversee the Company’s risk management systems and

the corporate governance policy to ensure the contfinuous improvement and conformity with the intfernational standards.

The Board’s directors shall devote their time and efforts for the Company’s growth and shall take responsibility in
protecting the Company’s interests without seeking personal benefits or acting in conflict of the Company’s interests. The
utmost duty of the Board of Directors is to ensure corporate growth and stability, and attain balanced and sustainable

benefits for all stakeholders, especially the shareholders.

In2011, there were 7 board meetings. Prior fo each meeting the Company submitted the meeting agenda and information
for each item on the agenda to each member of the Board of Directors so that the members had sufficient time to

study the details about each agenda item.

As for the consideration of each agenda item, Chairman of the Board, as the chairman of the meetings, granted each
director the chance to give opinions in a free manner. As for the vote on each agenda item, each director has one
vote. Resolutions are passed by a majority of votes and in case of equal votes the chairman of the meeting has the

right to cast the deciding vote.

After each meeting, the secretary of the Board of Directors shall prepare the meeting minutes and present it to the
Chairman of the Board of Directors to approve by signature. All minutes are to be approved in the subsequent meeting.
Affer that, the minutes are systematically filed and stored in hard copies in the office of the Managing Director, together

with all of the supporting documents of the meeting to facilitate easy access for future reference.
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Furthermore, the Company has established an internal audit system since 2000. The responsibilities of the Internal Auditor

are to audit and to monitor the sufficiency of the intermnal control system, as well as to audit the operations of the
management and the Company’s risk management. The Internal Auditor works independently and reports directly to
the Company’s Audit Committee. In 2011, the Internal Auditor had 5 meetings with the Audit Committee. The performed

duty of the Audit Committee was recorded and presented in an audit committee report after every meeting.

5.5 Quadlifications and Nomination of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall identify qualified candidates to replace the directors retiring at the end of their terms or for
any other reasons, and shall consider and submit a list of nominees to the Shareholders’ Meeting for resolution. It is the
Board's responsibility to consider and select candidates who are highly qualified, experienced professionals from various
fields, who demonstrate breadth of vision and great leadership, who have competence as well as a proven record of

high moral standards, integrity, and professionalism.

5.6 Term of Office of the Board of Directors

The Company has prescribed that all Directors, including Independent Directors, shall be appointed on a 3 years term
and shall be retired on a rotation basis. According to the Company’s Article of Association, one third of the Company’s
directors shall be retired on the rotation basis at every annual general meeting. However, the retired directors can be

re-elected at the shareholders” meeting.

In the case any director has tendered his/her resignation or is to be retired for any other reasons prior to the end of
his/her term, the Board can appoint a succeeding director and he or she can remain in the position to complete the

remaining ferm of the former director.

5.7 Remuneration of the Board and Management
None of the Company’s directors, except the independent directors and executive directors, shall receive any form of
remuneration and benefits from the Company. The independent directors are provided with agreed annual director’s fees

and per diem meeting allowances, of which the rates are considered fair in the industry in which the Company operates.

Regarding the remuneration of the Managing Director and top executives, the Chairman and the Board shall consider
the individual performance and achievements and the Company’s overall performance against the agreed budget of

the particular year.

Remuneration shall be disclosed transparently in the Company’s annual report. The Company has disclosed in its 2011
Annual Report details regarding the remuneration for Independent Directors and the Company’s executives. Non-Executive

Directors did not receive any kinds of remuneration from being the directors of the Company.

5.8 Risk Management

The Board sets policies and establishes the risk management system for preventing and managing those identified
risks. The system is applied throughout the business operations along with the systems of monitoring, analysis, standards
comparison, and assessment of the risk management, as well as an audit system. The Board has assigned the Audit
Committee to oversee the audit system in order to ensure that the Company’s risk management and the implementations
have been properly conducted. The Audit Committee shall report regularly to the Board the progress of implementation

of the risk management.
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» The COMPANY’'S ACTIVITIES IN 2011

Children’ Day Activity 8 January2011

TPA freated its employees’ children with food and

qifts.

Support to Public Sector 28 June 2011

TPA supported the Krathumlom Municipality with bicycle
28 June 2011

Workshop Promoting Harmony within Organization
20 December 2011

TPA, always valuing its human resources,invited an
external expert to conduct a workshop for its employ-
ees in order to promote harmony.enhance efficiency,
as well as increase knowledge and skills of its person-

nel, which will ultimately benefit the company itself.

Fire Drill Training and Practice 28 December 2011

TPA organized the fire drill fraining and practice for 2011 to
prepare the employees to be ready and know what to do | i

in an emergency situation.
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5 S Activities 29 December 2011

TPA Managing Director awarded Certificate of

Excellence fo the best employee in implementing the

*53" Activity

Sport Day 29 December 2011

TPA held an internal sports event to promote morale and

unity among employee

Annual Physical Check-up 11 January 2012

TPA arranged for an annual physical check-up to safeguard

! the employees’ health
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» RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions consist of the transactions carried out with Lucite Group Mitsubishi Rayon
Group and Asiatic Acrylics Company Limited. They were carried out on the terms and conditions similar to those carried
out with third parties and based on an arm’s length basis.  Service fee is charged based on the level of difficulty of

service provided.

In 2011 the company had related fransactions with corporate entities which might cause the conflict of interests

and would be subject to the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand as follows:-

a) Purchases/sales of goods and services for the years ended 31 December 2011

( Unit : Million Baht.)

Parties that might Relationship Type of Transaction Price Policy Reason
cause the conflict transaction Value
Lucite International  Shareholder is Lucite Purchases of 0.44  Market price. Quality and
Japan Ltd. International UK raw materials lead time.
Overseas Holdcol
Limited
Lucite International  Shareholder is  Lucite Sales of 6.65  Selling price is To expand
(Shanghai) Trading  International UK goods based on an arm’s  the business
Ltd. Overseas Holdcol length basis. in China.
Limited Service fee 1.17  Service fee is
charged based on
the level of difficulty
of service provided.
Lucite Infernational  Shareholder is  Lucite Service fee 3.06 Service fee is To expand
Korea Ltd. International UK charged based on  the business
Overseas Holdcol the level of difficulty  in Korea.
Limited of service provided.
Lucite International  Shareholder is Lucite Service fee 0.19  Service fee is To expand
Singapore Pte. Ltd. International UK charged based on  the business
(Singapore) Overseas Holdcol the level of difficulty  in Singapore.
Limited of service provided.
Purchases of 6.56  Market price Quality and

raw materials

prevent loss

of supply.
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a) Purchases/sales of goods and services for the years ended 31 December 2011

( Unit : Million Baht.)

Parties that might Relationship Type of Transaction Price Policy Reason
cause the conflict transaction Value
Lucite International Shareholder is Lucite Purchases of 6.87  Market price Quality and
UK Ltd. (Darwen) International UK raw materials prevent loss
Overseas Holdcol of supply.
Limited Service fee 1.02  Service fee is To expand
charged based on  the business
the level of difficulty  in United
of service provided  Kingdom.
Lucite International Shareholder is  Lucite Purchases of 1.156  Market price. Quality and
Holland B.V. International UK raw materials special
Overseas Holdcol product.
Limited
Thai MMA Co., Ltd Shareholder is Mitsubishi  Purchases of 557.07  Market price. Quality and
Rayon Co., Ltd raw materials prevent loss
of supply.
Diapolyacylate Shareholder is Mitsubishi  Purchases of 4791 Market price. Quality and
Co., Ltd Rayon Co., Ltd raw materials prevent loss

of supply.
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b) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services as at 31 December 2011

(Unit : Million Baht.)

Parties that might Relationship Type of Transaction Price Policy
cause the conflict transaction Value
Lucite International  Shareholder is Lucite Trade 1.80  Selling price is To expand
(Shanghai) Trading  International UK accounts based on an arm’s  the business
Ltd. Overseas Holdcol receivable length basis. Service  in China.
Limited fee is charged
Other 1.09  based on the level
payable of difficulty of
service provided.
Lucite International  Shareholder is  Lucite Other 1.90  Service fee is To expand
Korea Ltd. International UK payable charged based on  the business
Overseas Holdcol the level of difficulty in Korea.
Limited of service provided.
Lucite International  Shareholder is Lucite Other 0.40 Service fee is To expand
Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.  International UK payable charged based on  the business
(Singapore) Overseas Holdcol the level of difficulty  in Singapore.
Limited of service provided.
Lucite International  Shareholder is Lucite Trade 1.80  Market price. Quality and
UK Ltd. (Darwen) International UK accounts prevent loss
Overseas Holdcol payable of supply.
Limited Other 0.85 Service fee is To expand
payable charged based on  the business
the level of difficulty  in United
of service provided.  Kingdom.
Thai MMA Co., Ltd.  Shareholder is Mitsubishi  Trade 148.95  Market price. Quality and
Rayon Co., Ltd accounts prevent loss
payable of supply.
Diapolyacylate Shareholder is Mitsubishi  Trade 5.92  Market price. Quality and
Co. Ltd. Rayon Co., Ltd accounts prevent loss
payable of supply.
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» REPORT ON ACCOUNTABILITY OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The Board of Directors has full responsibility not only to oversee the effectiveness of the overall business performance
year on year, but to ensure the accuracy and completeness of financial statements that all relevant information must

be disclosed and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards in Thailand.

The Board of Directors also provides full support for an effective internal control system under the supervision of the Audit
Committees, comprising of all three independent directors who are qualified and independent to set up the financial
control system including the related party fransaction which could potentially have involved a conflict of interest, in
order to assure the reliability of the financial statements which are the intention and policy of the company to do the

business in compliance with good corporate governance.

The Board of directors has considered the 2011 Financial Statements and hereby ensured the accuracy and appropriate

disclosure of the Company’s financial statements as at December 31, 2011.

=
- '

(Mr. Sei Jin Liou) (Mr.Suchitr Srivetbodee)

Chairman of the Board of Directors Managing Director
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» AUDIT COMMITTEE'S REPORT

USHN Inalndazaiin NA (IK1TW)
iy THAI POLY ACRYLIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

YEAR 2011
To: THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Audit Committee of Thai Poly Acrylic Public Co., Ltd comprised of 3 independent directors,
having Mr. Seri Sakdisawasdi as Chairman, Assistant Professor Wattanee Phanachet and Mr. Sorasakdi
Suchart as committee member. The Audit committee reports to the Company's Board of Directors, and its

scope of authority, duties and responsibilities are specified in the audit committee charter.

In 2011, the Audit Committee held 5 meetings with the auditor, internal auditor and management, the
main topics of the meetings are as follows :

1. The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s financial statement of the quarterly and the year
2011 with the auditor and management, and agreed that the Company’s financial statements were prepared
according to the generally accepted accounting principles and standards, including disclosures of adequate
relevant information in footnotes and related party transactions are in compliance with the guidelines of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand.

2. The Audit Committee reviewed the company’'s internal control system with the auditer, internal
auditor and the management, and found that the internal control system to be appropriate and adequate.

3. The Audit Committee reviewed the independency of internal auditor, the annual internal audit plans,
the scope of internal audit's work plan and internal audit report, including the evaluation of the internal auditor's
performance and found no deficiencies.

4. The Audit Committee found that the Company is in full compliance with the applicable regulations
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other relevant authorities.

5. The Audit Commitiee reviewed and evaluated its own performance and found that it was in
accordance to the scope of authority, duties, responsibilities specified in the Audit Committee charter.

6. Consider, select, specify the compensation for the auditor, and submit it to the Company's Board
of Directors who will then propose it to the general meeting of shareholders for their appointment of Ernst &
Young Office Limited as the Company’s auditor for 2012. The audit fee amounting to Baht 1,100,000 same as

2011 and having any one of the following persons conducts an audit :

60-61 Wi 9 DWWANTUIAMARIL 4 FILANTENUAN dunamunTIL JandauaTly 73220
60-61 Moo 9, Phutthamonthon Rd., No.4 Krathumlom, Sampran, Nakhonpathom 73220 THAILAND.
Tel. (662) 429-2020, 429-2487-8, 889-8720-5 Fax : (662) 429-2534, 429-2541, 888-5953
www thaipolyacrylic.com

@)

sy

TIS 18001
Certificate : OHS02020/091
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uSEn Inalwdazasaa 3100 (N¥12w)
MoDEN GLas THAI POLY ACRYLIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED.

1. Mr. Supachai Phanyawattano Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930 and/or
2. Mr. Narong Puntawong Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3315 and/or

3. Miss Siraporn  Quaanunkun Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3844

Furthermore, the Audit Committee had a meeting with the auditor, excluding Company’'s management,
to consult independently about the relevant issues pertainihg to the preparation of the Company's financial
statements, risk management and information disclosures which would benefit the financial statements

readers, including the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system.

= AL

(Mr. Seri Sakdisawasdi)
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Given on 20 February 2012

60-61 %1 9 NUWWNENMMANIY 4 FWANINEY SunemuwTn awlauasgy 73220
60-61 Moo 9, Phutthamonthon Rd., No.4 Krathumlom, Sampran, Nakhonpathom 73220 THAILAND.
Tel. (662) 429-2020, 429-2487-8, 889-8720-5 Fax : (662) 429-2534, 429-2541, 888-5953
www thaipolyacrylic.com

TIS 18001
Cerificaic : OHS02020/081
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» FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenues (Million Baht) Assets (Million Baht)
2,000 2,000
1.593.16
1,564.14
1,500 1,500
1.297.74
1,031.74
1,000 1.000 981.57
950.53
500 500
0 0
2009 2010 2011 2009 2010 2011
2011 2010 2009
Revenues (Million Baht) 1.564.14 1,693.16 1.297.74
Expenses (Million Baht) 1.470.57 1,523.08 1.219.58
Net profit (loss) (Million Baht) 66.87 51.99 61.19
Earnings (Loss) per share (Baht) 5.50 4.28 5.04
Shares (Million Baht) 12.15 12.15 12.15
Assets (Million Baht) 950.53 1,031.74 981.57
Liabilities (Million Baht) 339.83 428.19 375.33
Shareholders’ Equity (Million Baht) 610.69 603.55 606.24
Book Value per share (Baht) 50.26 49.68 49.90
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» EXPLANATION FINANCIAL ANALYSIS & OPERATING PERFORMANCE

1. Results of Operations according to Business Operation Plans
Results of operations according to the 2011 Business Operation Plans can be summarized as follows:

1.1 The Company has still been able to maintain its work safety record through the past year, as there were no
reportable injuries during 14,385 million work hours. This is because the Company has all along adhered to its work
safety policy with much emphasis on its own staff, by arranging training for the staff at all levels to ensure that they
do have good understanding and attain the skills in working together to create a safety and hygiene atmosphere
while af the same fime taking in account the good working environments. There is also the SHE Committee whose
tasks are to set policies, objectives, targets and annual improvement plan. Further, the Committee even monitors

and evaluates the performances during the year.

Besides, the Company also aftaches importance to improvement of machinery and equipment continuously to

ensure maximum safety among workers and to increase production efficiency.

1.2 Amid worldwide economic retraction as well as domestic political and economic problems in the past year, the
Company still managed to maintain its market share both locally and abroad. Nevertheless, the net profits from
operations in 2011 of the Company increased by 50% from the previous year, as a result of reduced costs of pro
duction towards the end of the year after the costs of raw materials had risen since the year before. This resulted

in the rate of profits to have increased according to the trend of rising prices of goods.

1.3 Inthe past year, the Company still applied the strategy of focusing on product quality improvement to attain higher
standards so as fo respond to the needs of its customers both locally and abroad, and also set the target of increasing

production efficiency and reducing losses from the production process with an aim to reduce the overall production costs.

2. Results of Operations

In 2011 the Company had income from net sales at Baht 1,510.30 million, a reduction of Baht 26.44 million or 1.72%
when compared to that of the previous year, owing to decreased sale volumes as a result of the floods towards the
end of the year. However, the Company had obtained an increase of net profits in 2011 by Baht 14.88 million, or 28.62
percent when compared to that of the year before. This stemmed from the rising selling prices of goods while the costs
of sale decreased, as the costs of raw materials appeared to have gone down towards the end of the year, thereby
making the rate of profits from operations to increase by 2.83 percent and 1.84 percent respectively, as compared to
those of the preceding year when the rate of net profits increased by 4.27 percent and 3.26 percent respectively, while

the rate of returns to shareholders increased at 11.01 percent as compared to that of the previous year of 8.59 percent.

3. Financial Position
Assets

As at 31st December 2011, the Company had total assets at Baht 950.53 million, a reduction of Baht 81.22 million,
or 7.87 percent, from that of 2010. Main reasons being the decrease of account receivables and other receivables as

a result of loss of results of operation during the flooding periods around the factory of the Company.
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Liabilities

As at 31st December 2011, the Company had total liabilities at Baht 339.83 million, a decrease of Baht 88.35 million,
or 20.63 percent from the previous year, as a result of decrease of current liabilities at Baht 99.68 million when compared
fo that of the year before. Main reasons being the reduction of current liabilities in the part of account receivables
and other receivables due to decreased productions affected by the flood crisis towards the end of the year, and this
made the rate of current liabilities to shareholders’ equity to remain at 0.56 percent, a decrease from the past year
which stood at 0.71 percent.
Liquidity

In 2011 the Company had net cash flow from the operations in the amount of Baht 77.92 million, an increase of
Baht 25.65 million from the previous year. Reasons were the reduction of account receivables/account payables as a
result of reduced sale volumes and reduced productions when compared to those of the previous year due to the flood
crisis towards the end of the year. The cash flow spent in investment activities amounted to Baht 99.46 million and in
fund mobilization activities amounted to Baht 49.03 million, an increase of Baht 91.03 million and a decrease of Baht
6.68 million from those of 2010 respectively. Main reasons being the increase of investments to purchase lands and the
reduction of payment of dividends to the shareholders according to the results of operations of 2010, resulting in cash

and cash equivalent in 2011 to have been reduced from 2010 by Baht 70.45 million.

Despite the Company having an increased net cash flow from operations and an increased cash flow spent in
investment activities while the fund mobilization activities appeared to have decreased, the ratio of liquidity of the
Company in 2011 was still high at the rate of 1.79 times, a small increase as compared to that of the year before which

stood at around 1.73 times.

Capital Structure

The Company had ratio of liabilities to shareholders’” equity at 0.56, compared fo that of the past year which was at
0.71 times, as a result of a reduction of account receivables and other receivables, while the ratio of ability to payment
of interest payable showed a positive tendency from 759.85 times in 2010 to 1,971.41 times in 2011, owing to the decrease

of liabilities under the financing lease agreement.

Based on the financial position and the results of operations in 2011, the Board of Directors passed a resolution that
a proposal be forwarded to the Ordinary Shareholders Meeting to approve payment of dividends for 2011 at the rate
of Baht 4.50 per share, making the total amount of Baht 54,675,000.00 (Baht fifty four million six hundred and seventy five

thousand only), or computed as the ratio of dividend at 81.77 percent of the net profit.

4. Main Factors and Influences That May Affect Operations or Financial Position in the Future

The factors that may have certain influences towards the future operations of the Company have already been stated

in Article 1: Risk Factors.
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» REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

To the Shareholders of Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited

| have audited the statement of financial position of Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2011,
and the related statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness and the
completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my
audit. The financial statements of Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2010 and for the year
then ended, as presented herein for comparative purposes, were audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by another auditor who, under his report dated 25 February 2011, expressed an unqualified opinion

on those financial statements.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that | plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audit provides a

reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2011, and the results of its operations, and cash flows for

the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion on the above financial statements, | draw atftention to Note 3 to the financial statements.
During the current year, the Company adopted a number of revised and new accounting standards as issued by the

Federation of Accounting Professions, and applied them in the preparation and presentation of its financial statements.

Ly (e

Supachai Phanyawattano

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930

Emst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 27 February 2012
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» FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

(Unit : Baht)

Note 2011 2010
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 134,496,799 204,949,618
Current investment - fixed deposit 15 1,019,018 1,005,333
Trade and other receivables 9 310,252,164 388,189,829
Inventories 10 135,357,876 137,886,188
Other current assets 6,334,967 7,609,656
Total current assets 587.460,824 739,640,624
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 360,896,648 287,376,880
Intangible assets - computer software 12 1,734,539 2,050,000
Other non-current assets 435,030 2,676,094
Total non-current assets 363,066,217 292,102,974
Total assets 950,527,041 1,031,743,598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited

Statements of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

(Unit : Baht)
Note 2011 2010

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 306,775,122 411,281,257
Current portion of liabilities under finance lease agreements 575,456 425,902
Income tax payable 14,356,466 7,927,968
Other current liabilities 6,223,717 7,978,702
Total current liabilities 327,930,761 427,613,829
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities under finance lease agreements - net of current portion = 575,456
Provision for long-term employee benefits 14 11,904,130 -
Total non-current liabilities 11,904,130 575,456
Total liabilities 339,834,891 428,189,285
Shareholders' equity
Share capital

Registered

12,150,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 121,500,000 121,500,000
Issued and fully paid-up
12,150,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 121,500,000 121,500,000

Share premium 233,350,000 233,350,000
Retained earmings

Appropriated - statutory reserve 16 12,150,000 12,150,000

Unappropriated 243,692,150 236,554,313
Total shareholders' equity 610,692,150 603,554,313
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 950,527,041 1,031,743,598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited
Statements of comprehensive income
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(Unit : Baht)

[\[e} (=} 2011 2010

Profit or loss :

Revenues
Sales 1,5610,298,955 1,636,735,497
Service income 3,162,137 14,944,778
Other income
Scrap sales 39,299,009 35,638,428
Others 11,388,886 5,845,339

Total revenues
Expenses

Cost of sales and services
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Total expenses

Profit before finance cost

1,564,138,987

1,593,164,042

1.348,643,841
51,942,748

69,988,312

1,402,234,943
58,647,770

62,195,105

1,470,574,901

1,623,077.818

and corporate income tax 93,564,086 70,086,224
Finance cost (49.670) (95,061)
Profit before corporate income tax 93.514,416 69,991,163

Corporate income tax

(26,648,114)

(18.003,753)

Profit for the year 66,866,302 51,987,410
Other comprehensive income for the year = -
Total comprehensive income for the year 66,866,302 51,987,410
Earnings per share 18

Basic earnings per share 5.50 428

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited
Cash flow statements

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010
(Unit : Baht)

2011 2010

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Profit before ftax 93,514,416 69,991,163
Adjustments fo reconcile profit before tax to

net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation 26,690,058 36,432,025
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts = (10,000)
Decrease of inventory to net realisable value 1,422,144 666,972
Gains on sales of equipment = (21,087)
Losses from write-off of equipment 3 206,185
Provision for long-term employee benefits 1,232,660 -
Unrealised exchange gains (2,112,708) (5.434)
Interest income (864.,004) (635,652)
Interest expenses 49,670 95,061

Income from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 119,932,244 106,819,233

Operating assets (increase) decrease

Trade and other receivables 80.488,450 (562,486,959
Inventories 1,106,168 (35,204,081)
Other current assets 1,067,883 627,456
Other non-current assets (35,000) -

Operating liabilities increase (decrease)

Trade and other payables (104,918.,515) 49,883,648
Other current liabilities 735,456 2,497,959
Provision for long-term employee benefits (456,996) -
Cash flows from operating activities 97.919.690 72.137.256
Cash paid for inferest expenses (49.670) -
Cash paid for corporate income tax (19.954,117) (19.866.681)
Net cash flows from operating activities 77,915,903 52,270,575

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited
Cash flow statements (continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

(Unit : Baht)

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities

Acquisitions of machinery and equipment (16,450,158) (7.721,927)
Acquisitions of computer soffware (32,000) (1,762,000)
Cash received from sales of equipment - 21,957
Deposits paid for purchases of land (83.825,646) -
Interest income 848,271 1,035,669
Net cash flows used in investing activities (99.459.533) (8.426,301)

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities

Repayment of liabilities under finance lease agreements (425,902) (1,027.489)
Dividend paid (48,600,000) (54,675,000)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (49,025,902) (55,702,489)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (70,569,532) (11,858,215)
Unrealised exchange gains for cash and cash equivalents 116,713 5,434
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 204,949,618 216,802,399
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 134,496,799 204,949,618

Supplemental cash flow information: - -
Non-cash fransactions
Purchases of machinery and equipment

for which no cash has been paid 2,547,636 3,273,122

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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» NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

1. Corporate information

Thai Poly Acrylic Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled
in Thailand. Its major shareholders are Lucite Intemnational UK Overseas Holdco1 Limited, incorporated in England
and Asiatic Acrylic Company Limited, incorporated in Thailand, with shareholdings of 42.3 percent and 34.1 percent,
respectively. Lucite International UK Overseas Holdco 1 Limited is a subsidiary of Lucite International Group Limited, incorporated
in England and the ultimate parent company of the Group is Mitsubishi Rayon Company Limited, incorporated
in Japan. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of Acrylic, Acrylonitrile Butadiene
Styrene and High Impact Polystyrene sheets. The registered office of the Company is af 60-61 Moo 9, 4th

Putthamonthon Road, Krathumlom, Sampran, Nakornpathom.
2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the
Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations
of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 28 September 2011, issued under the

Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The

financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the

accounting policies.
3. Adoption of new accounting standards during the year

During the current year, the Company adopted a number of revised and new accounting standards, issued by

the Federation of Accounting Professions, as listed below.

Accounting standards:
TAS 1 (revised 2009) Presentation of Financial Statements
TAS 2 (revised 2009) Inventories
TAS 7 (revised 2009) Statement of Cash Flows
TAS 8 (revised 2009) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
TAS 10 (revised 2009)  Events after the Reporting Period
TAS 11 (revised 2009)  Construction Contracts
TAS 16 (revised 2009)  Property, Plant and Equipment
TAS 17 (revised 2009)  Leases
TAS 18 (revised 2009)  Revenue
TAS 19 Employee Benefits
TAS 23 (revised 2009)  Borrowing Costs
TAS 24 (revised 2009)  Related Party Disclosures
TAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
TAS 27 (revised 2009)  Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
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TAS 28 (revised 2009)  Investments in Associates
TAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
TAS 31 (revised 2009)  Interests in Joint Ventures
TAS 33 (revised 2009)  Earnings per Share
TAS 34 (revised 2009)  Interim Financial Reporting
TAS 36 (revised 2009)  Impairment of Assets
TAS 37 (revised 2009)  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Confingent Assets
TAS 38 (revised 2009)  Intangible Assets
TAS 40 (revised 2009)  Investment Property
Financial reporting standards:
TFRS 2 Share-Based Payment
TFRS 3 (revised 2009)  Business Combinations
TFRS 5 (revised 2009)  Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
TFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:
TFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
Accounting Standard Interpretations:

SIC 31 Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

These accounting standards do not have any significant impact on the financial statements, except for the

accounting standard for employee benefits, as detailed below.

TAS 19 Employee Benefits

This accounting standard requires employee benefits to be recognised as expenses in the period in which the service
is performed by the employee. In particular, an entity has to evaluate and make a provision for post-employment
benefits and other long-term employee benefits using actuarial techniques. The Company previously accounted

for such employee benefits when they were incurred.

The Company has changed this accounting policy in the current year and recognised the liability in the transition
period through an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained earnings in the current year. The change has
the effect of decreasing the profit of the Company for the year 2011 by Baht 1 million, (0.1 Baht per share). The
cumulative effect of the changes in the accounting policy has been separately in the statement of changes in

shareholders’ equity.
4. New accounting standards issued during the years not yet effective

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the following new/revised accounting standards that are effective

for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Accounting standards:
TAS 12 Income Taxes
TAS 20 (revised 2009)  Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance

TAS 21 (revised 2009)  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Accounting Standard Interpretations:
SIC 10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
SIC 21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

SIC 25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders

The Company’s management believes that these accounting standards will not have any significant impact on

the financial statements for the year when they are initially applied, except for the accounting standard for income taxs,

as detailed below.
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TAS 12 Income Taxes

This accounting standard requires an entity fo identify temporary differences, which are differences between the
carrying amount of an asset or liability in the accounting records and its tax base, and to recognise deferred tax assets

and liabilities under the stipulated guidelines.

At present, the management is evaluating the impact on the financial statements in the year when this standard

is adopted.
5. Changing in accounting estimation
Useful lives of machinery and equipment

In 2011, the Company reviewed and changed the useful lives of some machinery and equipment from 5 and 10 years
to 15-20 years. The change became effective immediately from 1 January 2011 onwards. The change has the
effect of increasing the profit of the Company for the year 2011 by Baht 8 million, or 0.6 Baht per share.

6.  Significant accounting policies

6.1 Revenue recognition
Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed
to the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting

discounts and allowances.
Rendering of services
Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

6.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and atf banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original

maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

6.3 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated atf the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the estimated
losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experience

and analysis of debt aging.

6.4 Inventories

Finished goods are valued atf the lower of average cost and net redlisable value. Average cost includes all

production costs and attributable factory overheads.
Raw materials, chemicals, spare parts and factory supplies are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out

method) and net realisable value and are charged to production costs whenever consumed.

6.5 Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance

for loss on impairment of assets (if any).
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6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their cost, on the straight-line basis over the

following estimated useful lives:

Buildings - 20 years
Buildings improvement - 5 years
Machinery and equipment - 5 - 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 and 5 years

Motor vehicles - 5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation.

Intangible assets and amortisation - computer software

Computer software is measured at cost. Following initial recognition, computer software is carried at cost less any

accumulated amortisation and allowance for impairment losses (if any).

Computer software with finite lives is amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful life of 5 years and tested for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the computer software may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method of such computer software are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The

amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss.

Related party transactions
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether

directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest
in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors,

and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange ratfe ruling at the date of the
fransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the

exchange rate ruling atf the end of reporting period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the property,
plant and equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset,

which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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6.10 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly contributed
by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the Company’s

contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon
retirement under labor law and other employee benefit plan. The Company freats these severance
payment obligations as a defined benefit plan. In addition, the Company provides other long-term

employee benefit plan, namely long service awards.

The obligations under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plan are determined
by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected

unit credit method.

For the first-time adoption of TAS 19 Employee Benefits, the Company elected to recognise the transitional liability,
which exceeds the liability that would have been recognised at the same date under the previous

accounting policy, through an adjustment fo the beginning balance of retained earnings in the current year.

6.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

6.12 Income tax

Income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based on

taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

7. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times
requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain.
These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these

estimates. Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgement and estimates
based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing

economic condition.
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Property plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful
lives and residual values of the plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and residual values when

there are any changes.
Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The obligations under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plan are determined based
on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future

salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
Related party transactions

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties. Such transactions, which
are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and

bases agreed upon between the Company and those related parties.

(Unit : Million Baht)

2011 2010 Pricing policies
Transactions with related parties
Sales of goods 7 6 With reference to market price
Purchases of raw materials 620 696  As agreed with reference to market price
Service expenses 5 7 Contract price and as agreed

The balances of the accounts between the Company and those related parties as at 31 December 2011 and 2010

are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2011 2010

Trade receivables - related parties (Note 9)

Fellow subsidiaries 1,802 1,086

Trade and other payables - related parties (Note 13)

Fellow subsidiaries 3,386 11,046

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent

Thai MMA Company Limited 148,952 207,313
Others 8,569 16,886
Total frade and other payables - related parties 160,907 235,245

m ANNUAL REPORT 2011



9.

Directors and management’s benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company had employee benefit expenses payable to its

directors and management as below.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2011 2010

Short-term employee benefits 22,639 18,324
Post-employment benefits 315 -
Other long-term benefits 7 -
Total 22,961 18,324

Trade and other receivables

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2011 2010

Trade receivables - related parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 1,802 1,086

Total trade receivables - related parties 1,802 1,086

Trade receivables - unrelated parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 262,273 350,426
Past due
Up fo 3 months 44,210 33,054
3 - 6 months 1.403 3,082
6 - 12 months 3 82
Over 12 months 708 708
Total 308,597 387,352
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (708) (708)
Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net 307,889 386,644
Total trade receivables - net 309.691 387,730
Other receivables 561 460
Total frade and other receivables - net 310,252 388,190

THAI POLY ACRYLIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED m



10. Inventories

Finished goods

Raw materials

Spare parts and factory supplies

Good in transit

Total

Reduce cost to net

realisable value

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Inventories-net

51,451 61,817 (5.,650) 4,227) 45,801 57,590
45,890 42,243 = - 45,890 42,243
40,705 32,582 = - 40,705 32,582
2,962 5471 = - 2,962 5471
141,007 142,113 (5.649) 4,227) 135,358 137,886

11.  Property, plant and equipment

Cost:

1 January 2010

Additions
Disposals/Write-off
Transfer in (out)

31 December 2010
Additions
Disposals/Write-off
Transfer in (out)

31 December 2011
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2010
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
31 December 2010
Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposals
31 December 2011

Net book value:

31 December 2010

31 December 2011

Depreciation for the year

157,288 139,334 402,720 30,379 11,363 7,083 748,167
= 23 2,210 1,500 = 6,974 10,707
- - (33) (20N - (206) (440)
= 529 1,006 - - (1,535) -
157,288 139,886 405,903 31,678 11,363 12316 758,434
83,826 - 1,376 473 = 11,912 97,587
- - - (10,346) - - (10,346)
= - 6,747 1,954 - (8,701) -
241,114 139,886 414,026 23,759 11,363 15,627 845,675
- 103,943 293,199 29,136 9,605 - 435883
- 10,880 22,668 941 918 - 35,407
- - (33) (200) - - (233)
= 114,823 315,834 29,877 10,523 - 471,057
= 8.861 13.868 934 404 - 24,067
= - = (10,346) - - (10,346)
= 123,684 329,702 20,465 10,927 - 484778
157,288 25,063 90,069 1,801 840 12,316 287,377
241,114 16,202 84,324 3.294 436 15,627 360,897
2010 (Baht 33 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 35,407
24,067

Buildings and

buildings

improvement

Machinery
and
equipment

Furniture,

fixtures vehicles

and office
equipment

Motor

Assets under

installation
and under
construction

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2011 (Baht 22 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses)
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13.

As at 31 December 2011, certain plant and equipment items had been fully depreciated but were still in use. The

gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets amounted to approximately Baht

324 million (2010: Baht 304 million).

The Company has pledged assets amounting to approximately Baht 183 million (2010: Baht 183 million) as collateral

against credit facilities received from financial institutions, as described in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Intangible assets - computer software

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2011 2010

Cost

1 January
Additions

31 December

Accumulated amortisation

1 January

Amortisation during the year

31 December

Net book value as at 31 December

Amortisation expenses for the year

Trade and other payables

2,050 -

32 2,050

2,082 2,050

347 -

347 -

1.735 2,050

347 -

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2011 2010

Trade payables - related parties
Trade payables - unrelated parties
Amount due to related parties
Other payables

Accrued expenses

Total trade and other payables

156,669 230,663
109,065 145,487
4,238 4,582
12,646 12,093
24,157 18,456
306,775 411,281
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15.

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits as at 31 December 2011, which is compensations on employees’ retirement

and other long-term employee benefits, were as follows :

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Legal severance Long service

payment plan awards

Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy

for employee benefits adjusted against beginning

balance of retained earnings (Note 3) 9.769 1,359 11,128
Current service cost 640 133 773
Interest cost 410 50 460
Benefits paid during the year (85) @72) (457)
Balance at end of year 10,734 1,170 11,904

Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted

to Baht 1 million.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows :

. peramn

Discount rate 4.3
Future salary increase rate 4.5
Staff turnover rate (depending on age of employee) 0-454

Credit facilities

The credit facilities of the Company granted by financial institutions amounting to Baht 245 million (2010: Baht

245 million) are secured by the following:

a) The pledges/mortgages by land, buildings, machinery and equipment of the Company, with cost totaling Baht
183 million (2010: Baht 183 million)
b) The pledges/mortgages by twelve-month fixed deposit (for bank overdraft facilities)
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16.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant fo Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a
statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until
the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

At present, the Company’s statutory reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered share capital.
Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2011 2010

Raw materials and consumables used 1,168,422 1,254,856
Changes in inventories of finished goods 10,366 (33.395)
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits 95,249 88,673
Fuel and utility expenses 78,450 74,651
Transportation expenses 32,307 36,495
Depreciation and amortisation 24,622 36,432
Repairs and maintenance expenditure 8,768 10,438

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company

(excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Segment information
The Company engages principally in the business of manufacturing and selling of Acrylic, Acrylonitrile Butadiene
Styrene and High Impact Polystyrene sheets. Each of these products is considered part of the same line of business

which is regarded as one business segment.

Sales and service income by geographic markets of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

are as follows:

(Unit : Million Baht)

2011 2010

Thailand 996 1,046
Other countries in Asia 235 267
Australia and New Zealand 153 164
Countries in Europe 96 53
Others 33 22
Total 131E) 1,552

Due to the fact that these geographical segments are sharing the same revenue-generated assets and liabilities,

the Company did not allocate cost of sales and services and assets and liabilities among these geographical

segments.
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20. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund

Act B.E. 2530. The registered provident fund plan was approved by the Ministry of Finance on 1 June 1999. Both
employees and the Company contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 3 or 5 or 7 percent of basic salary. The fund,

which is managed by a fund manager, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules.

21. Dividends

Dividends Approved by Total dividends Dividend per

share

(Million Baht) (Baht per share)

Final dividends for year 2010 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 27 April 2011 49 4.0

Final dividends for year 2009 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 28 April 2010 55 45

22. Commitments and contingent liabilities
22.1 Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had capital commitments of Baht 7 million, relating to the acquisitions

of machinery and equipment.
22.2 Operating lease commitments
The Company has entered into several lease agreements in respect of the lease of buildings. The terms of

the agreements are generally within three years.

As af 31 December 2011, future minimum lease payments required under these non-cancellable operating

lease contracts were as follows:

(Unit : Million Baht)

Payable within:

Less than 1 year 1

1 to 5 years 2

22.3 Service agreement commitments

As at 31 December 2011, future minimum lease payments required under these non-cancellable service

lease contract were as follows.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Payable within:

Within 1 year 2

1 to 5 years 1
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22.4 Bank guarantees

23.

23.1

As at 31 December 2011, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 7 million issued by

a bank on behalf of the Company in respect of electricity usage and others.
Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No.107 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade
and other payables. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is

described below.
Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade receivables. The Company manages
the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore does not expect to incur
material financial losses. In addition, the Company does not have high concentrations of credit risk since it
has a large customer base. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of trade

receivables, as stated in the statement of financial position.
Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to the normal interest rate risk related to its deposits at financial institutions. However,
since most deposits at financial institutions bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close

to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 clossified by type of infterest rate are
summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further

classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Million Baht)

Fixed
interest rates

Within Floating Non- interest Effective

1 year interest rate bearing interest rate

(% per annum.)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 121 13 134 0.65-0.875
Current investment - fixes deposit 1 - = 1 2.50
Trade and other receivables = - 310 310 -

1 121 323 445

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables - - 307 307 -
Liabilities under finance lease agreements 1 - - 1 0.56
1 - 307 308
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Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from the purchases/ sales of goods and machinery
that are denominated in foreign currencies. The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies as at 31 December 2011 are summarised below.

Foreign currency Financial Financial Average exchange rate

assets liabilities as at 31 December 2011

(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign

currency unit)

US dollar 3.6 0.6 31.6912
Australia 0.6 - 32.1971
Euro = 0.1 41.0274
Japanese yen = 49 0.4084

23.2 Fair values of financial instruments

24,

25.

26.

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature, their fair value is not expected

to be materially different from the amounts presented in statements of financial position.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable,
wiling parties in an am’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of

the financial instruments or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate capital structure

in order o support its business and maximise shareholder value.

Reclassification

To comply with the Notification of the Department of Business Development relating to the financial statement
presentation as described in Note 2 and as the result of the adoption of revised and new accounting standards as
described in Note 3, certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 have
been reclassified to conform to the current year’s classification, without any effect to the previously reported profit

or shareholder’s equity.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27 February 2012.
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